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                                                              October 26, 2011 
 
 
 
Donald Winters, Director 
MCUSA, Inc. 
375 East 790 South 
Pleasant Grove, Utah  84062 
 
Bonneville Holding Company 
c/o Timothy J. Cooney, Esq. 
Wilkinson Barker Knauer, LLP 
2300 N Street, N.W. 
Suite 700 
Washington, D.C.  20037 
 
       Re: File No. BNPDVL-20090828ADZ 
        Channel 5, Logan, Utah 
        Facility ID No. 183046 
 
Dear Licensees: 
 
 This is with respect to the above-referenced application for a construction permit for a new digital 
low power television station on channel 5 at Logan, Utah, filed by MCUSA, Inc.  Bonneville Holding 
Company, the licensee of KSL-TV, Salt Lake City, Utah, filed an informal objection. 
 
 Digital television stations have both an RF or major channel number and a PSIP or virtual 
channel number.  The RF number is the channel number allotted to each full-power television station 
pursuant to Section 73.622(i) of the Commission’s rules.1  The PSIP or virtual channel number is the 
channel number assigned to each full-power television station pursuant to the PSIP Standard,2 and is the 
channel number viewers input into their television sets in order to view a particular television station. 
Station KLS-TV is transmitting on RF channel 38 with PSIP channel 5, and its programming is also 
distributed through a network of television translator stations.  One of its television translator stations, 
K45GL-D, channel 45, Logan, Utah, also uses channel 5 as its PSIP channel and Bonneville requests that 
the Commission require MCUSA to employ a PSIP channel that does not conflict with Bonneville’s 
stations.  In response, MCUSA suggests that it be allowed to use channel 1 as its PSIP channel at Logan. 
 
 The PSIP Standard “guarantee[s] that the two-part channel number combinations used by a 
broadcaster will be different from those used by any other broadcaster with an overlapping DTV service 
area.”3  It appears there will be overlap between K45GL-D and MCUSA’s proposed facility.  Therefore, 
pursuant to the PSIP Standard, MCUSA will be assigned PSIP channel 45, the RF channel for K45GL.  

                                                           
1 47 C.F.R. § 73.622(i). 
2 “ATSC Program and System Information Protocol for Terrestrial Broadcast and Cable, Revision C With 
Amendment No. 1, dated May 9, 2006.” 
3 PSIP Standard at Annex B, § 1, No. 8. 
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 In view of the foregoing, Bonneville’s Informal Objection IS GRANTED and the above-
referenced application for a new station on channel 5 IS GRANTED and assigned channel 45 as its PSIP 
channel. 
 
       Sincerely, 
 
 
 
       Hossein Hashemzadeh 
       Deputy Chief, Video Division 
       Media Bureau 
 
  


